
AGENDA
Committee PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

TUESDAY, 4 AUGUST 2015, 10.30 AM

Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 1 - COUNTY HALL

Membership Councillor Parry (Chair)
Councillors Manzoor Ahmed, Boyle, Bridges, Goddard, Hudson, 
Kelloway, Morgan, Murphy, Phillips, Simmons and Walsh

1  Apologies for Absence  

To receive apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest  

To be made at the commencement of the agenda item in question, in accordance 
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

3  Minutes  
(Pages 1 - 6)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of 7 April 2015.

4  Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Matters  
(Pages 7 - 8)

5  Control of Street Trading - Working Street  
(Pages 9 - 22)

6  Control of Street Trading - Bangor Street  
(Pages 23 - 30)

7  iCabbi GPS Taxi Management and Despatch System  
(Pages 31 - 34)

Marie Rosenthal
Director Governance and Legal Services
Date:  Wednesday, 29 July 2015
Contact:  Graham Porter, 029 2087 3401, g.porter@cardiff.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE 
 
7 APRIL 2015 
 
Present: County Councillor  Manzoor Ahmed(Chairperson) 
 County Councillors Bridges, Howells, McGarry, Morgan, Murphy, 

Phillips and Simmons 
 

Apologies: Councillors Parry 
 

68   Apologies for Absence   
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Parry 
 
69   Declarations of Interest   

 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
70   Minutes   

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2015 were approved by the Committee as a 
correct record and were signed by the Chairperson. 
 
71   Central Square Designation   

 
The Committee, on 6 January 2015, authorised publication of its intention to pass a 
resolution to change the street designation of the part of Central Square to a prohibited 
street.   
 
The Public Notice was published, inviting representations relation to the proposed 
resolutions by 6 March 2015. 
 
An objection was received from Mr Timothy Harris outside of the deadline period, 
however, that objection has since been withdrawn.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee agree to: 
 
(1) From 1 June 2015 rescind the designation of those parts of Central Square currently 

designated as a Licence Street; and 
 

(2) From 1 June 2015 designate Central Square in its entirety as a Prohibited Street; 
 

72   Central Square to Working Street Designation   
 

The Committee received a report and were asked to consider the relocation of the trading 
site of Mr Timothy Harris. 
 
Mr Harris, who is currently licensed to sell hot drinks and hot food will no longer be able 
to trade from Central Square due to the forthcoming redevelopment and the change in 
designation.   
 
A number of sites were considered, however Working Street has been identified as the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



only viable option and a purpose built hut will be erected.  Mr Harris has been asked for 
his views and he has accepted the offer of Working Street as an alternative trading site. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee agree to: 
 
(1) Rescind the current designation as a prohibited street for the purposes of street 

trading of the area of 6 square metres on Working Street’s south west side from a 
point 5 metres of its junction with the footpath known as Dead mans Walk for a 
distance of 3 metres south east; 
 

(2) Designate the area of 6 square metres on Working Street’s south west side from a 
point 5 metres of its junction with the footpath known as Dead Mans Walk for a 
distance of 3 metres south east, as a Licence Street for the purposes of street 
trading; and 

 
(3) Authorise the County Solicitor to publish a legal notice of the Committee’s intention 

and report to the Committee in due course so that it may consider passing the 
necessary resolution. 

 
73   Designation of Licensed Streets for the Purposes of Street Trading   

 
The Committee received a report of the review of the Council’s Street Trading Licensing 
Policy and were asked to consider the redesignation of the street designations for the 
historic licensed street trading sites.     
 
The fixed trading sites in Cardiff are historic and the legal processes involved in setting 
the appropriate street designations were undertaken many years ago.  During the review 
a number of anomalies in street designations have become apparent and need to be 
formalised and some of the street traders have moved slightly from their original locations 
due to redevelopment of the area. 
 
Members were advised that in addition to a street being designated a licence street a 
Traffic Regulation Order must also be in place to allow a parking bay to be created for the 
purpose of street trading.  The street licence area and the Traffic Regulation Order should 
be identical. 
 
Members were advised that should the recommendations be approved the relevant 
notice(s) would be issued and the matter would be further considered at Committee on 2 
June 2015. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee indicates its intent to: 
 
(1) Rescind the current street designations of part of Working Street, Bangor Street, 

Churchill Way, Donald Street, Guildhall Place, Arabella Street, Tewkesbury Street 
and Ruby Street; 

 
(2) Designate the following as licence streets: 
 

a) Working Street – on its south west side in an area 6 square metres from a point 
15 metres south east of its junction with the foot path known as Dead Mans 
Walk for a distance of 3 metres south east. 
 

Page 2



b) Park Lane – from a point 2 metres north west of its junction with Queen Street 
for a distance of 2 metres north west and from a point 2.4 metres north east of 
the south western building line for a distance of 3 metres north east. 

 
c) Bangor Street – on the west side of Bangor Street from a point 7 metres north 

of its junction with Wellfield Road to a point 10 metres north of the same 
junction. 

 
(3) Designate Churchill Way, Donald Street, Guildhall Place, Arabella Street, 

Tewkesbury Street and Ruby Street as prohibited streets in their entirety. 
 
74   Skin Piercing Registrations   

 
The Committee noted the actions taken by the Head of Regulatory and 
Supporting Services in respect of the following applications: 
 
Personal 
 
(1) F Carey 

 
(2) L Dart 

Aurora Health & Beauty 
 

(3) M Bennett 
Aurora Health & Beauty 
 

(4) B Harrison 
Health & sports 

  
Premises 
  
(1) Stronghold Tattoo Limited 

12 Crichton House 
11 – 12 Mount Stuart Square 
Cardiff 
  

75   Street and House to House Collection Licence Applications   
 

The Committee noted the actions taken by the Head of Regulatory and Supporting 
Services in respect of the following applications: 
 
1 Guide Dogs for the Blind 

Street Collection Permit 
02/10/2015 
 

2 Leukaemia & Lymphoma Research 
Street Collection Permit 
17/05/2015 
 

3 1st Cathays Al Huda Scouts 
Street Collection Permit 
05/04/2015 

Page 3



4 BBC Children in Need 
Street Collection Permit 
28/11/2015 
 

5 Action Against Hunger 
Street Collection Permit 
03/10/2015 
 

6 Interpal 
Street Collection Permit 
08/03/2015 
 

7 Make a Wish Foundation 
Street Collection Permit 
28/04/2015 to 30/04/2015 
 

8 Look Good Feel Better 
Street Collection Permit 
15/08/2015 
 

9 Christian Aid 
Street Collection Permit 
09/05/2015 
 

10 Action Dechenne 
Street Collection Permit 
28/06/2015 
 

11 Breakthrough Breast Cancer Care 
Street Collection Permit 
23/04/2015 
 

12 Breakthrough Breast Cancer Care 
Street Collection Permit 
17/04/2015 

13 The Encephalitis Society 
Street Collection Permit 
16/08/2015 
 

14 Leukaemia & Lymphoma Research 
Street Collection Permit 
21/06/2015 
 

15 Guide Dogs for the Blind 
Street Collection Permit 
09/10/2015 
 

16 Transverse Myelitis Society 
Street Collection Permit 
18/03/2015 
 
 

Page 4



17 Christian Aid 
Street Collection Permit 
16/05/2015 
 

18 Meningitis Now 
Street Collection Permit 
19/04/2015 
 

19 Alzheimer’s Society 
Street Collection Permit 
19/09/2015 
 

20 Cystic Fibrosis Trust 
Street Collection Permit 
04/05/2015 
 

21 1st Cathays Al Huda Scouts 
Street Collection Permit 
06.04.2015 to 10.04.2015 
 

22 Look Good Feel Better 
Street Collection Permit 
22/05/2015 to 24/05/2015  

 
 
Signed: 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



                                                                                                           AGENDA ITEM
CARDIFF COUNCIL
CYNGOR CAERDYDD

PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE: 4th AUGUST 2015

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF REGULATORY & SUPPORTING SERVICES

HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE APPLICATIONS

The Committee is requested to determine the following application:-

1. Mr M N Lazim  Citroen Berlingo Registration No SL60 ULY

Application to have the Citroen Berlingo approved as a prestige vehicle with a 
ten year age restriction.

2. Mr J Hurley  Kia Sedona Registration No CK10 VWL

Application to have the Kia Sedona approved as a prestige vehicle with a ten 
year age restriction.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL      Agenda No. 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD 
 
PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE:  4 August 2015 
 
Report of the Director of Governance and Legal Services 
 
CONTROL OF STREET TRADING –WORKING STREET 
 
 
1.  Background 
 
1.1 At its meeting of 7th April 2015 the Committee authorised officers to publish 

notice of its intention to pass resolutions to change the street designation of part of 
Working Street from a prohibited street to a licence street for the purpose of street 
trading, pursuant to Paragraph 2 of Schedule 4 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

 
1.2 The intention is for the change to have effect from 8th September 2015  
 
1.3 The reason for the change is the forthcoming redevelopment of the Central Square 

area, due to start Summer 2015, which will mean that the current licensed street 
trader, Mr Timothy Harris, will no longer be able to trade from that location. Mr 
Harris is licensed to sell hot drinks and hot food such as jacket potatoes and 
burgers. 

 
1.4 Working Street had been identified as a suitable alternative trading site for Mr 

Harris.  
 
2. Details. 
 
2.1 In accordance with the statutory procedure a Public Notice stating the 

Committee’s intention was published in the South Wales Echo on 10th June 2015.  
Copies were also sent to the Senior Officer for Highways and Senior Officer for, 
Traffic and Transportation Officer.  The Notice invited representations relating to 
the proposed resolutions to be made in writing by 8th July 2015.  

 
2.2 46 letters of objections to the proposals were received in response to the public 

notice, plus a 246 signature petition of objection. 42 of the letters were in identical 
format. Details are shown in Appendix A of this report.  

 
2.3 The vast majority of objections have originated from the Hayes Island Snack Bar 

on the basis of unfair competition.  
 
3. Financial Implications 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



3.1 The Council is empowered to charge such fees as it considers reasonable for the 
grant or renewal of a street trading licence or consent. The current fee for an 
annual street trading licence is £563.00 

 
3.2 The cost of advertising the designation as required by statute and the cost of 

enforcing the designation will be met from the current budget. Expenditure is 
considered as part of the review of licence fees. 

 
4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 There is no legal obligation to relocate Mr Harris’s street trading pitch. However 

the Committee has previously expressed its intention to relocate Mr Harris to a 
suitable alternative site.  

 
4.2 The Committee must consider the representations that have been received and 

consider whether it wishes to proceed with the re-designation. 
 
4.3 All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal 

powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by 
law; (c) be within the powers of the Body or person exercising powers on behalf 
of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements 
imposed by the Council e.g. Standing Orders and Financial Regulations; (e) be 
fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard 
to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its tax payers; (h) be reasonable and proper in 
all the circumstances 

 
 
5. Recommendation 

 
5.1 It is recommended that the matter be considered. 
 
5.2 Should, following consideration of the matter, the Committee wish to proceed 

with the re-designation then in accordance with the statutory provisions of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous) Provisions Act 1982, the Committee must 
pass the following Resolutions: 

 
5.2.1 With effect from 8 September 2015, all previous resolutions 

designating the area of 6 square metres on Working Street’s south 
west side from a point 5 metres from its junction with the footpath 
known as Dead Man’s Walk for a distance of 3 metres south east 
as a Prohibited Street, for the purposes of Part III of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 are rescinded. 

 
5.2.2 With effect from 8 September 2015, that area of 6 square metres 

on Working Street’s south west side from a point 5 metres from its 
junction with the footpath known as Dead Man’s Walk for a 

Page 10



distance of 3 metres south east be designated a Licence Street, for 
the purposes of Part III of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 

 
Marie Rosenthal       10 July 2015 
Director of Governance & Legal Services 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with procedures approved by Corporate 
Managers.  
 
Background Papers:  Report of the Head of Regulatory Services: Public Protection 
Committee 7th April 2015 –Street Trading Designation –Central Square Redevelopment 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL      Agenda No. 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD 
 
PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE:  4 August 2015 
 
Report of the Head of Regulatory Services 
 
APPLICATION FOR A STREET TRADING LICENCE FOR BANGOR STREET  
 
 
1.  Background 
 
 
1.1 On the 9th June 2015 an application was submitted by Mr Neil Clark. Mr Clark is 

applying for the grant a licence to operate the currently vacant site at Bangor 
Street, Roath, Cardiff, to trade in fruit, vegetables and flowers. 

  
1.2 Part of Bangor Street has been licensed to trade in fruit, vegetables and flowers 

for over thirty years. The last licence holder Mr Salem Omar operated the site 
since 1998. The site has been very popular with shoppers and local residents who 
would purchase fruit, vegetables and flowers from Mr Omar. Mr Omar 
surrendered the licence and ceased trading with effect from 8th June 2015. 

 
1.3 The applicant Mr Neil Clark has worked with Mr Omar for approximately five 

years helping collect goods from the market and, for the last year and half, on the 
stall at Bangor Street. (Mr Clark has been listed as a named assistant on the last 
licence application form.) 

 
2. Details of the site and trading conditions. 
 
2.1 Bangor Street- On the west side of Bangor Street from a point 7 metres north of 

the junction with Wellfield Road to a point 10 metres north of the same junction, 
is designated as a licensed street pursuant to Part III of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

 
2.2       Street trading licences are not transferable and must be surrendered to the 

authority when trading ceases. Applications can then be considered by the Public 
Protection Committee should the authority intend to allow trading to continue at 
the site. 

 
2.3 The dimensions of any receptacle used on the site should not exceed: 
 

• 3.20 metres in length 
• 2 metres in width. 
• 2.90 metres in height. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



2.4 The trading hours currently allocated to the site are Monday to Sunday 8.00 am to 
6.00 pm. 

 
2.5 The licence authorises the holder to trade solely in the articles and in the manner 

and at the places and times specified in the licence and is granted subject to the 
provisions of Part III and Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982. 

 
2.6       In Mr Clark’s application he states that he has worked on the site with Mr Omar 

for a number of years. Mr Clark states that he has built up a rapport with traders 
and customers in the area and that the site had become part of the community and 
would be greatly missed by residents and locals should the site be discontinued. 

 The letter of application from Mr Clark is detailed in Appendix A. 
 
2.7 Jenny Rathbone AM has sent a letter of support of Mr Clark’s application, as 

detailed in Appendix B. Local residents have also contacted the Licensing Section 
to show support for the application (see Appendix C), and attention has been 
drawn to a letter in the South Wales Echo on 29th June 2015 requesting the return 
of the stall (see Appendix D). In addition a petition supporting the application 
containing 2619 signatures was received by the Licensing Section on 17th July 
2015. 

 
3. Considerations 
 
3.1 Street trading is controlled by Schedule 4 of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. Under this legislation, the Council may 
only refuse an application on any of the following grounds: 
 
(a) that there is not enough space in the street for the applicant to engage in 
the trading in which she desires to engage without causing undue interference or 
inconvenience to persons using the street; 

(b) that there are already enough traders trading in the street from shops or 
otherwise in the goods in which the applicant desires to trade; 

(c) that the applicant desires to trade on fewer days than the minimum number 
specified in a resolution passed by the Council [in Cardiff there is no such 
resolution]; 

(d) that the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having 
been convicted of an offence or for any other reason; 

(e) that the applicant has at any time been granted a street trading licence by 
the Council and has persistently refused or neglected to pay fees due to them for it 
or charges due to them for the collection of refuse, the cleansing of streets, and 
other services rendered by them to her in her capacity as licence-holder; 

Page 24



(f) that the applicant has at any time been granted a street trading consent by 
the Council and has persistently refused or neglected to pay fees due to them for 
it; 

(g) that the applicant has without reasonable excuse failed to avail herself to a 
reasonable extent of a previous street trading licence 

 
3.2 Mr Clark has vast experience working as a street trader and none of the above 

grounds of refusal, in the opinion of the officers of the Licensing Service, appear 
to apply.  

  
4. Achievability 
 
 This report contains no equality personnel or property implications. 
 
5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The street trader’s site in Bangor Street has already been designated as a licensed 

street pursuant to Part III and Schedule 4 of the Local Government  
 (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 
 

5.2 If the Committee considers that none of the grounds for refusal set out in 
paragraph 3.1 apply then the Committee is legally obliged to grant the licence. 
 

5.3 If the Committee intends to refuse the application it must inform the applicant of 
the ground on which it intends to do so and give him the opportunity to make 
representations to it.  

  . 
 
6. Financial Implications. 
 
6.1 The Licensing Service is required to be self financing within the limitations of 

statute. 
 
6.2 The current fee for an annual Street Trading Licence is £563.00. Licences run 

from 1st January to 31st December. 
 
7. Recommendation 

 
7.1 It is recommended that the committee determine the application made by Mr Neil 

Clark for the grant of a Street Trading licence in Bangor Street.  
 
 
Dave Holland        10 July 2015 
HEAD OF REGULATORY SERVICES  
 

Page 25



This report has been prepared in accordance with procedures approved by Corporate 
Managers.  
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL      Agenda No. 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD 
 
PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE:  4th August 2015 
 
Report of the Head of Regulatory Services 
 
REQUEST FOR THE APPROVAL OF AN ICABBI GPS TAXI MANAGEMENT 
& DISPATCH SYSTEM 
 
 
1.  Background 
 
1.1 At its meeting of 6 March 2012 the Committee approved the Autocab GPS taxi 

management and dispatch system for use in private hire vehicles. As a result the 
following condition was added to the City of Cardiff Council’s Private Hire 
Vehicle Licence Conditions: 

 
Condition 14: ‘A GPS taxi management & dispatch system consisting of a mobile 
vehicle data head and a central dispatch system manufactured by Autocab UK 
may be fitted in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions to private hire 
vehicles.’ 

 
1.2 An application has been made by Dragon taxis to approve the use of a similar 

system manufactured by iCabbi, for use in private hire vehicles. 
 
2. Details of the System 
 
2.1 The iCabbi system consists of a mobile data head (PDA) and a central dispatch 

system. The PDA in the vehicle displays the fare calculation. 
 
2.2 As with the Autocab system the system cannot be considered a taximeter as it 

does not comply with the Measuring Instruments (Taximeters) Regulations 2006. 
 
2.3 Full details of the system can be found on the company’s website: 

http://www.icabbi.com/ 
 
 
3. Consultation 
 
3.1 The trade consultation procedure was undertaken in accordance with the 

consultation procedure on any policy matters.  The draft reports intended for 
consideration were made available at the licensing offices for any interested party 
to provide written submissions. 

 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



 
4. Achievability 
 
 This report contains no equality personnel or property implications. 
 
5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The iCabbi System does not comply with the EU Measuring Instruments 

Directive and consequent UK regulations, therefore, it cannot be considered for 
use as a taximeter in hackney carriages. However it could be considered for use in 
private hire vehicles subject to amendment of the Council’s Private Hire Vehicle 
Licence Conditions as set out in the Recommendation. 

 
6. Financial Implications. 
 
6.1 This report contains no financial implications 
 
7. Recommendation 

 
7.1 It is recommended that the Committee consider the approval of the iCabbi 

management and dispatch system for use in private hire vehicles.   
 
7.2 If approved, it is recommended that Private Hire Vehicle Licence Condition 14 be 

amended to read as follows: 
‘A GPS taxi management & dispatch system consisting of a mobile vehicle 
data head and a central dispatch system, of a type approved by the City of 
Cardiff Council, may be fitted in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
instructions to private hire vehicles.’ 
 

7.3 That the Head of Regulatory Services is authorised on behalf of the City of 
Cardiff Council to approve GPS taxi management & dispatch systems for use in 
private hire vehicles. 

 
7.4 That the Head of Regulatory Services is authorised to make minor administrative 

changes to the Taxi Licensing Policy and Conditions. 
 
 
Dave Holland        14 July 2015 
HEAD OF REGULATORY SERVICES  
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with procedures approved by Corporate 
Managers.  
 
Background Papers:  Report of the Head of Regulatory & Supporting Services, 6 March 
2012: Public Protection Committee – Request for the Approval of the GPS Taximeter 

Page 32



APPENDIX   A 
 
 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Matters
	5 Control of Street Trading - Working Street
	Working Street Appendix A

	6 Control of Street Trading - Bangor Street
	Bangor Street Appendix A-D

	7 iCabbi GPS Taxi Management and Despatch System

